UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT i
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 2181SEP 12 PH 2t L5

Civil Action No. -Civ-

'U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING
COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

V.

JOERG HEIERLE, an individual; and
INH-INTERHOLDING SA, a Svnss
corporation,

Defendants,

FUTURES TRADING ACADEMY,
INC., a Florida corporation,

'Re'lief Defendant.

COMPLAINT F OR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF,
~ AND FOR CIVIL MONETARY PENALTIES

The U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“Commission™), by its
' attorrieys,' elleges as follows:

I
SUMMARY

1. From at least October 2001 and continuing-to April 2007 (“the relevant
penod”) Defendants Joerg Heierle (“Heierle) and INH- Interholdmg SA (“INH”)
| (herelnafter collectwely referred to as “Defendants”) actlng through its employees

agents or ofﬁcers including but not limited to the apparent sole manager of INH Helerle



.fraudulently solicited and accepted ét least $4.4 mi'llion from at least seventéen
individuals to invest in commodity futures and options fhrough INH éommodity pools,
which Defendants purportediy operated.

2. In soliciting prospeCtive pool participants, Defendants rﬁisrepresented their
past track record and the rates of return that they generated for pool participants.
Defendants also ‘failed' to adequately disclose the risks involved in trading commodity
ﬁltufes and optiohs to.prospective bool participants. Heierle fraudulehtly-solicited
prospeétive pool participants by repfesenting that the investments he managed were
consistently profitable, with rarely a losing month. On the INH website,
wWw.in-tefholding.net, De_fendants posted the INH com'mc;dity pools’ historic’aljy
pfoﬁtable returns. Heierle confirmed the validity ;Sf these returns in oral and Written
sol_icitaﬁOns with prospective pool participants. |

3. Contra’fy to his claims "of vpa.st success and profitable trading, Heierle
Sustainéd overall net trading losses of _apprbxifnately $1 million dﬁring the felevant period
in all known commodity futures and options accounts that he (;ontrolled, rhanaged or held
in his _name. There are no known tradihg e;ccounts held in the name of INH or any of its |

purported commodity bools;

4, - To concqal Heierle’s.tradihg lo_ssés, Defendants fabricated or caused to be
faBﬁcéfed and posted or caused tb be péstec_l false statements on the INH website
pertaihing'to the purporfed_ly profitable returns of the INH pqols. 'Aécdrding to the INH
\%vebsitc, the INH i)oéls routpetrforlme.d thébDo‘w Jones, S&P 500 al;d NASDAQ indices for

the first quarter of 2007,



5. Defendants als.o fabricated or cali_se_d to be fabricated and posted orcaused
to be posted false statements to pool participants concerning the purported proﬁtability of
Defendants’ trading. Defendants posted pool participants’ returns on their individual |
INH website account summaries. With lirnited exceptions, those account summaries
reflected Defendants’ consistently proﬁtable trading of pool participant funds. According
to their INH website account_ summaries, most pool participants never experienced a
losing rnonth during the relevant period.

6. Some pool participants substantially' increased their investrnents and/or
encouraged_ others to invest with Defendants based on the profits posted in their TNH
website ac‘coun‘t summaries.

7. Heierle directed certain of Defendants’ pooi participants to forward funds
for investment in the INH pools to Relief Defendant F utures Trading Academy, Inc.
(“FTA”)', a purported commodities futures trading educational company founded and"
controlled by Heierle. FTA provided no apparent Iegitimatel services or had any interest
or entitlement l'to the pool participants’ funds , |

8. . Since April 2007 pool partrcrpants have not been able to contact Heierle
or access their funds. The dlspos1t10n and location of pool part1c1pant funds i is unknown
at this time.

9. Defendants have engaged, are engaging in, or are ab.out to engage in
| practices that v1olate the prov151ons of the Commodrty Exchange Act, as amended
' (“CEA”) 7 U S.C. §1 et seq (2002) and Commrssron Regulatlons (“Regulatlon”) 17

C.FR. § 1.1 et seq. (2007).



10. | Specifically, Defehdants’ fraudulent solicitatiens of prospective and |
existing commodity pool participants violate Sections 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii), 4c(b) and
40(1) of the CEA, 7U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii), 6¢(b) and 60(1) (2002), and
Regulations 33.10(a) and (c), 17»C.F R § 33‘. 10(a) and (c)7(2007).

11.  Defendants’ fabrication and issuance, and/or causing the fabrication or
 issuance, of false statements tQ comrhodity pool participants reﬂecting proﬁtable tradihg |
| of eommodity futures ahd optiohs on behalf Qf the pool partieipants violates Sections

4b(a)(2)(ii) and 4c(b) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(11) and 4¢(b) (2002), and

Regulation 33.10(b), 17 C.F.R. § 33 10(b) (2007).

12.  Insoliciting ahd accepting funds from individuals for the- purpose of

peohng the funds and 1nvest1ng in commodlty futures and optlons INH was acting as a

commodlty pool operator (“CPO”) and Heierle was actlng as an assoc1ated person (“AP”)

of INH w1thout being registered with the Comm1ss1on as requlred INH’s fallure to
reglster with t_he Commission as a CPO violates Section 4m(1) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §
6m(1) (2002). Heierle’s failure to register as ah AP of INH violates Section 4k(2) of the
CEA,7US.C. § 6k(2) (2002). | |

13. By recei_ving_i funds in bank aceo_unts held in the name of Defendants and
| FTA and 'by other acts, INﬁ, thiough the acts of its ofﬁcets, employees,_or agents,
ihclﬁdihg-Heierle, failed to operate the commodity pools as legal entities separate from
themselves and failed to receive pool part1c1pant funds in the name of the pools in
v1olat10n of Regulatlons 4. 20(a)( 1) and (b), 17 C.F.R. § 4. 20(a)(l) and (b) (2007)

14, INH failed to provide pool participants with a Disclosure Document



containing required infermation, and did not receive acknoWledgements from pool
participants of receipt of a Disclosure Doculnent in violation of Regulaﬁon 4.21, 17.
C.F.R. § 4.21 (2007). |

15.  INH also failed to provide monthly Account Statements to each pool
participant containing vthe information required by Regulatic')n.4.22 in violation of
Regulation 4.22, 17:C.F.R. § 4.22 (2007).

16. At all relevant times, Heierle was acting as the agent of INH. Therefore,
INH is liable for Heierle;s violations of Sections 4b(a)(2)(i), (ii) and (iii), 4c(b), 4k(2) and
40(1) of the CEA, 7 U.S.FC. §§ 6b(2)(2)(1), (ii) and (iii); 6¢c(b), 6k(2) and _69(1) (2002), and
Regulationsv4.20(a)(1) and (b), 4.21, 4.22 and 33.10, 17 C.F.R. §§ 4.20(a)(1) and (b),
4.21,4.22 and 33. 10 (2007), pursuant fo Section 2(a)(1)(B)' of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §
'2(a)(l)(B) (2002), and Regulation 1.2, 17 C. F R. § 1.2 (2007). |
| 17. Helerle directly or 1nd1rectly controlled INH and did not act in good faith,
or knowmgly 1nduced directly or 1nd1rectly, the acts constltutmg INH’s violations of
| Sectlons 4b(a)_(2)(1), (11) and (111), 4c¢(b), 4m(_1) and 40(1) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §§
6b(a>(2)(i),--(ii)-and (iii), Gc(b), 6m(1) and 69( 1) (2002), and Regulations 4.20(a)(1) and -
(b), 421, 4.22 and 33.10, 17 C.FR. §§ 4.20(a)(1) and (b), ‘4.2,,1, 4.22 and 33-.10 (2007),
and 1s therefore .liable asa eontrolling persen_ pursnant to Section lé(b) of the CEA, 7
U.S.C. § 13c(b) (2002) for INH’s violations . |

| ‘18. Accordlngly, pursuant to Section 6¢ of the CEA 7 U S.C. § 13a-1 (2002) |

~ the Commlssmn brings th1s action to enjoin Defendants unlawful acts and practlces to

obtain a freeze on assets held in the name of Defendants, or in the control or management



of Defendants, to corﬂpel Defendants’ compliance with the CEA, and to obtain an order
permitting expedited discovery. The Commission also seeks a permanent injunction,-
civil monetary penalties, restitution ‘to customers for losses proximately caused by
Defendants’ fraud, disgorgement of Defendants’ ill-gotten gain_s, and such other ancillary
relief as this Court may deem necessary or appropriate.

19.  Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendants are likely to continue to engage
in the acts and practices alleged in this Comp}aint, as more fully described below. |

’ 1I.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

20.  This Court has jurisdictipn over this action pursuant to Section 6§ of the
CEA,7U.S.C. § 13a-1 .(2002), which provides that whenever it shall appear to the
Commission that any person has engaged, is engaging, or is about to engage in any acf or
practice constituting a violation of any pl;ovision of the CEA or any rule; regulation, or
order promulgated there under, the Commission may bring an actidn against such person
to enjoin such practice or to enforce compliance with the CEA.

~21. Venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to -Sect'ion 6¢(e) of the CEA,
7U.S.C.§ ”1 3a-1(e) (2002), in that Defendants transact business in this District, and the
acts and practices in violation of the CEA have 'Qc.:curred, are oc'curring, or are about to
Ociéur, within this District, amo‘ng other places.

IIL.
THE PARTIES

22.  Plaintiff U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission is'an .

independent federal regulatory agency that is charged with the administration and
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épforéement of the .CEA, 7 US.C.§§ 1 et seq. (2002), and the Regulations promulgated
there under, 17 CER. §§ 1.1 et seq. 2007).

| 23. DefendantrJoerg Heierle is an individual Whose last known.'place of
residence is Miami Beach, Flor_idé. He is engaged in the business of soliciting individuals
to participate iﬁ commodity pools and other managed accounts to _trade commodity
futuresband 6ption§. Heierle has éccepted funds from prospective péol participants to

. trade on their behalf in the commodity futﬁres markets. He registered with the

Commission as a comrhodity trading advisor (“CTA”) on October 4, 2005, but withdrew

hlS regiétfation on January 4, 2007. Pursuant to a May 16, 2007 NationalFutures

Association (“NFA”) Membef Responsibility ACtio'n,Heiérle’s NFA membership has

been suspended. |

24.  Defendant INH-Inteiholding’ SA was‘incorporated in Switzerland on |

December 1, 1982 and has two principal places of business located at 1210 Washington

Avenqe, Suite 212, Miami Beach, FL 33139 and 15 McMurrich Street, Suite 1103, _

* Toronto, ON M5R 3M6. Heierle is the appafent sole managér of INH. INH maintains a
préSence on the Internet at www.interholding.riet. INH has never been registered with the
Commission in any dapacity.

25.  Relief Defendant Fuvtures Trading Academy, Inc. (“FTA”) Was

-incbrpbréted in Florida on February 6, ‘20011 and has its principal place of business at
1174 102“-_d St, Bay Harbour, F133154. .FTA registered with the Commission as an

. ihtroducihg brokef on Jﬁne 19, 2002,‘ but Withdrew ifs régistratioh on Septémber 24,

2003. Heierle holds himself out as the co-founder, co-owner, and president of _FTA. FTA
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maintains a préseﬁce on the Internet at www.ftacademy.com. FTA has received funds of
pool participants that were defrauded by Defendants and holds those funds in constructive
 trust for the benefit of pool participants.

IV.
FACTS

A.  Defendants Fraudulently Solicited At Least $4.5 Million from At
Least Seventeen Pool Participants

26. . Since at least October 2001, Heierle has vsolici_te;d aﬁd accepted funds from
pbO_l participants and purportedly tfaded commodity futures and options on their behalf
' thrdugh the INH commodity pools. Heierle is the apparent sole ma_nager of INH.l ‘
27.  Heierle solicited prospectivé pool partic.ipants in the name of INH ‘us_ing
the INH website, personal solicitations and the efforts Q f exisﬁng pool participants wﬁo
spread the news to friends and family of their profitable investments w1th Defendants,
28.  Heierle directed pro'spectivé pool participants to the INH website and in
'paniéular to the vreturns he had posted on the website for three INH investment- produ’cfs;
“ INH Stratégic, INH Momentum, and INH Tertium (hereinafter collectivgly rgferred to as
the “INH pools”). The INH ‘website claimed that from 2003 to _2005; the -INH pools Were
consistently profitable with annual returns between 9.8% and 30.2% and that for the first
| : quai'ter 0f 2007, the INH pools outperformeci the Dow Jones, S&P 500af1d NASD;AQ
' indiées. |
29. - Heierle broﬁoted himself as an experienced and sﬁccessful trader of
cémrﬁodity futﬁféé éﬁd oﬁfibns. In h1s dirc_ect ‘soli‘cit:ations, Heierle repfesehted t§ certéin

 prospective pool participants that the INH pools earned between 3-4% per month.
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30. "i"heCdmmissiori is inférméd and believes and thereon élléges that Héierle‘
encourag_eci hesitaiit prospective pool participants to initially invest a small émount of
. money, monitor that investment, and then invest more money if the iniiial investment
_posted profitable réturns - which it almost always did. Further, by way of exarn;ile, in
July 2006, Heierle convinced a reluctant prosriective pool participant to make a re_la_tively
sm.all initial investmeni of $35,000 in an INH.pool and ietain the bulk of his available
funds pending the proﬁt.abl’e IierfOrmance of his initial investment. After Defendants |
posted six coriéecutiVe months of positivé'retums in the pool participant’s INH website -
account summary, the pdol participant invest_e_ci anothei $80,000 1n the INH pools.
| 3 1._ In his briil soliéitétions of prospective pool participants where he clainied '
great success in trading,commodity flitures and options, Heierle failed to disclose
- adequately the risks associated with trading commodity _futurés and options. -

32. Heierle failed td provide prospective poql participants with a‘Disélosure
D'qcﬁmem containing the informatiori required by Régulations 4.24 and 4.25, 17 CFR §§
424 and 425 (2007). Further, Heierle never obtained signed and dated |
acknowiédgements .from pool participants éta’ting that they had received a Disclosure
D‘ocu‘ment.'v v | |

33. “Asa r¢su’lt of his ﬂaudulent solicitations, from at‘ieast Octobér»2001‘ to
April 2007, Heierle, either in his name or in the name of INH or FTA, received at leai_st
$4.4 miliiori from at least seventeen individuals, fér the purpose of trading commodity
.futures and opfions in INH pools bn their b‘ehalf.l The majority.of ﬂie .-kn_owh poi)l :

" participants’ investments and re-investments in the INH pools, totaling approximately



$4,415,400, occurred between January 2005 and April 2007.
| 34, Defendants’ pool participants are located throughout the world, including
Australia, Israel, Itaiy, Switierland, the Uriited Kingdom, and the‘ United States.

. 35.  Heierle directed pool part101pants to wire funds directly to bank accounts
held by him, INH or FTA. Helerle d1rected pool partlclpants unable to wire funds to send
him checks made payab_le to FTA.

: 36. FTAisa purported' on-line edlicational program for investors interested in
trading commodity futures‘ and options. Heierle is a founder and president of FTA. FTA
provided no Vlegitimate services and does not have any legitimate interest or entitlement to
fhe funds of the pool participants.

37. Regardlesé of the designated recipient of these funds, Heierle inforriied
most of the pool participants that their funds would be invested in an INH pool.b |

38. Through the INH website and other mearis, Defendants informed pool
participants; that Defendants would earn management and operating éxpensés of 2%, and
‘perforrlnan_ce fees of 20% on any profits made ﬁorn-Defendants’ trading. of their pooled
funds, |

39. In deciding to invest.witii Defendants, .pool partir:ipants relied upon
Defendﬁnts’ oral and written material misrepresenfations- and omissions concerning their
past trading success, the returns of the INH pools and the risks associated with trading
‘comrnodity‘ﬁnures and options. _Defeiidanis kaningly pr recklessiy made those material

miSrepresentations_and omissions to induce individuals to invest with them.
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B. | Heierle’s Unprofitable Trading of Commodity Futures and Options
: “with Pooled Funds Resulted in Approximately $1 Million in Overall
Net Trading Losses :

40. Since at least October 2001, Heierle opened and maintained numerous
cornmodity futures and options pooled accounts in his name and jointly with another -
indiVidual, a former principal and employoe of FTA. Heieﬂe also opened and _maintained |
. numerous commodity pool trading accounts in the name of other commodities related
entities that hooontrolléd or managedbz FTA; Eiger Investment Group, Inc.; Prime Value
Inuestments, S.A.; and Pinnacle Trading Limited. There are no known commodity 7
futures and options trading accounts held in the name of INH or any of the INH pools.

41.  Heierle had tratling authority over all the known commodity futurés and
option‘s trading accounts‘.b | |

42. Throughout the relevant period, Heierle deposited a total of aporoximattely _
812 vrnillion‘ in the trading accounts held in his name or under his oontrol or managément.
‘Heierlé’s trading in those accounts sustained overall net trading losses of approximately
$1 million. Those accounts suffered overall net trading losses of approximattely $1.2
niiiliOnbetween J anuafy' 2005 and April 2007, the period in whjc'hb most of the pool
_ participants invested. | | - |

C. Defendants Posted False Profitable Returns to Conceal Their Tradmg
Losses from Prospective and Existing Pool Participants :

43, Throughout the relevant period, Defendants posted the INH pools’ returns
on the INH website. Defendants also posted pool partlclpants returns on 1nd1v1dua1 INH

website account summaries wh1ch pool participants could access on-line: Defendants
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~ posted returns on the account summaries on a monthly basis.
| 44.  The pool participants’ account summaries provided the individﬁal pool
pérticipant’s profits, losses, deposits, withdrawals and balaﬁces, but they did not reference
any fees or commissions charged by Defendants.

45.  With minor exceptioh, the returns Defendants posted for the commodity
pools and the pool participants’ account summaries falseiy represented that Defendants
were ‘proﬁtably trading on behal.f of the pool participants and generating positive returns
for every month of investment during the relevant period. -

46.  Inreality, Heierle’s trading of comfnodity-futures and options in all t‘h.e'_
known trading accoﬁnts he controlled resulted in significant losses. Indeed, there was é '
vast disparity between the profits that Defendants posted én the_ INH website and the
losses sustained by the commodity trading accounts Heierle-held, controlled or managed.
For exavmple,v the INH website clainﬁed that the three INH pools generated returns of
.12.1%, 17.3% and 30.2% in 2005. However, in éach of the trading accounts, Heierle
sustaiﬂed ﬁet trading lossés in 2005, losses which totaled $80,000 for all of the trading -
acéqunts. ‘As another example, despite Heierle having sustained approximately $1.2
million in overall net tréding losses for his pooled accounts between July 2006 and April
2007, Defendants’ posﬁ_ngs in pool participants’ account summaries reﬂecfed returns up
té 10% during that time period.

| - 47 Defendants’ postiﬁglof false profitable feturns and account statements
: éaﬁsed éxiétihg pob'lvpav.i't'iéipants to invest additiohal funds w1th Defendants ahd to

persuade others to invest with them. For example, after making an initial investment of
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$40,000 in December of 2005 and receiving account summafies showing consistenf
profitable returns, one pool participant invested an additional $92,000 with Defendants.
“48. Comrhericing in April 2007 and continuing to the present, pool
participants have demanded the retuﬁ of some or all of their funds invésted with-
Defendants. Pool Participants have not received any funds in response to their‘demands
and have not been able to cbntact Heierle since April 2007.
49.  Defendants knowingly or re’ckl‘essly‘ issued or caused to bg i'ss.ued the false
statements to pool participants concerning the profitability of defendants’ trading on their
“behalf.
- 50. Th;: disppsitioﬁ and location of the approximately $4.4 million solicited by |
Defendants for investment is unknown at this time.
| D.  Heierle Controlled INH and Was Its Agent
51.  Heierle acted as the apparent éolé maﬁager of INH He held himself out aé
the manager of INH at all relevant times.including but not limited to when he solicited
and accepted funds for investment in the INH commodity pools.
52.-  As the apparent -sole manager of INH, Heierle exercised control .ov'er _the
day-to-day business operatidns of the corporate' Defendant. He directed the wire transfer -
- of customer money into its bank accounts, and he was responsiblé for the content on the

" INH website.
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VIOLATIONS OF THE COMI\},(.)DITY EXCHANGE ACT AND
REGULATIONS
COUNT ONE
VIOLATION OF SECTION 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) OF THE CEA:
"~ SOLICITATION FRAUD (Futures)

53.  The allegations contained in paragraphs .1 through 52 above are re-alleged
and incorporated by reference herein.

54. By making false, deceptive, or misteading representations and omissions
of material facts in their solicitations of pool partieipants, Defendants have: (1) cheated or
| defrauded or attempted to cheat or defraud other persons; and/or (2) willfully deceived or
'atternpted to deceive other persons, in or in connection with orders to mahe, or the
mak.ing of, contracts' of sale of co'mrnodities for future delivery, made, or to be made, for
or on behalf of any other persons, where such contracts for future delivery were or could
be used for the purposes set forth in Section 4b(a)(2) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C.' § 6b(a)(2j all |
in Vlolatlon of Section 4b(a)(2)(1) and (iii) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(1) and (iii)
(2002)

55.. During the relevant time period, Heierle was acting asthe agent of INH.
: Therefore INH is liable for Heierle’s violations of Sectlon 4b(a)(2)(1) and (iii) of the
CEA,7U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(1) and (iii) (2002), pursuant to Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA,
7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) and Regulation 1.2,17CFR. § 12 (2007) Under Section |
2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA 7U.S. C § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) and Regulatlon 12,17 C F.R. § 1.2

(2007) strict 11ab111ty is 1mposed upon principals for the actions of thelr agents actlng

within the scope of their employment.
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_56. Heierle directly or indirectly controlled INH and did not act in good faith
or knowingly induced, directly or indirectly, the acts constituting INH’s violations of
Section 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) (2002). Heierle
s ‘t_herefc_)relial.ale for these violations of INH pursuant to Section 1‘3(b) of the CEA, 7
- US.C.§ 13c(bj (2002). | | |
57.  Each material misrepresentation or ornission of information that
' Defendants made or caused to Be_ made during the relevant time period, including but not -
limited to those speciﬁcally alleged herein, is alleged as a separate end distinct violation
of Section 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of tne CEA; 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) (2602)._

|  COUNTTWO o
- VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 4c(b) OF THE CEA
AND REGULATIONS 33.10(a) and (c):
SOLICITATION FRAUD (Options)

| 58.  The allegations contained in r)aragraphs 1 rhrough 52 above are re-alleged
and incorporated by reference herein.

- 59 In or in connection with an offer ro en__ter‘ in’ro, the entry into, the
chﬁrmation of, the execution of, or the maintenance of commodity options transactions,
: Defendan’re cheated, defrauded, or deceived or attempted to cheat, defraud, or deceive,
other persons, by meking false, deceptive, or misleading representations and omissions of
material facrs in his s_olieitat_ions of investors, all in r{iolation of Section 4¢(b) of the CEA,
77 US.C.§ 6c(b) (2002), and Regulat_ions 33.10(a) and (c), 17 C.F.R. §33.}1 0(a) and (c)
2007, | |

60.  During the relevant time period, Heierle was acting as the agent of INH.
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Therefore, INH is liable for Heierle’s Violutions of Section 4c(b) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § -

6c(b) (2002), pursuant to Section 2(a)( l)(B) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) and
Regulatioh 1.2,17 C.F.R. § 1.2 (2007). Under Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §
2(a)(1)(B) (2002) und Regulation 1.2, 17 CFR. § 1.2 (2007), strict liability is imposed
upon principals for the actions of their agents acting within the scope of their |
employment.
61.  Heierle directly or indirectly eontrolled INH and did not aet in good faith
~or knowingly induced, direetly or indirectly, the acts constituting its violatione of Section
4c(b) of the CEA, 7 U;S.C. §‘ 6¢(b) (2002) and Regulatiens 33.10(a) and (c), 17 C.F.R.
§33.1'0(a‘) and (c) (2007). Heierle is therefore liable for these violations of INH pursuant
.to Section l3(l3) of theCEA‘, 7_U;S.C. § 13c(b) (2602). -
62; | Eac.h_ material 'misrepresentation or omiseion of information that
Defendants made or caused to be ruade during the relevant time period, including but not
limited 'th those ‘speciﬁcally’alleged herein, is alleged as a separate ahd distinct violation
of Section 4c¢(b) of the CEA 7 U.S.C..§ 6¢c(b) (2002) and Regulat1ons 32. lO(a) and (c),
-17 C.F.R. §33.10(a) and (c) (2007).
| COUNT THREE
VIOLATION OF SECTION 4b(a)(2)(ii) OF THE CEA:
FRAUD BY FALSE STATEMENTS (Futures)
| 63 The allegat10ns contained in paragraphs 1 through 52 above are re-alleged
and 1ncorporated by reference herein.
; 64, By w1llfully maklng, or eausing to be made, falsestater_'nents to investors

in the form of internet postings, oral communications and electronic mail messages that
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reported vpro'ﬁtable com_modity futures trading, When actual trading resulted in vcont.inual
_'and substantial losses, Defendants violated Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) ofthe CEA,7U.8.C. §
6b(@)2)(C) ) (2007).
65. | During the relevant time period, Heierle was acting as the agent of INH.
Therefore INH is liable for Helerle s violations of Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) of the CEA 7
| - U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(ii) (2007), pursuant to Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA,7US.C. §
_ 2(5)(1)(B) (2002) and Regulation 1.2, 17 C.F;R. § 1.2 (2007). Under Section 2(a)(1)(B)
. of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) and Regulation 1.2, 17 C.F.R. § 1.2 ‘(2007)',
~ strict liability is imposed upon principals for the actions of their agents_aCtingv within the
scope of their employment, |
66.  Heierle directly oe indirectly controlled INH and did not act in good faith
or kneWingly_ induced,_directly or indirectly, the acts constituting its violations of Section
.4b(a)(2)(ii) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(ii) (2007). Heierle is therefore liable for
‘these vic‘).laltions of INH pursuant 1o Sectien_13(b) of 1.:het CEA, 7USC § 13c(b) (2(.)102).
o 67.  Each false st_atemehtb issued or caused fo be issued during the relei}anf time
period, including but nof limited to those speciﬁcélly alleged herein, is alleged- es-a _
| separate and distinct Violation of Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) bf the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(aj(ii),

(2002).
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COUNT FOUR
VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 4c(b) OF THE CEA
AND REGULATION 33.10(b):
FRAUD BY FALSE STATEMENTS (Options)

68.  The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 52 above are re;alleged
and incorporated by reference herein. |

69.  Inor in connection with an offer to enter into, the entry into, the
conﬁrmation of, the eneeution of, or the maintenance of commodity options transactions,
Defendants made or caused to be made to pool participants false reports or statements
relating to the proﬁtab.il,ity of commodity options trading in violation of Section 4c(b) of
| the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b) (2002), and Regulation 33.10(b), 17 C.F.R. §33.10(b) (2002).

70. | During the relevant time perlod Heierle was acting as the agent of INH.
Therefore, INH is liable for Heierle’s v1olat10ns of Section 4c(b) of the CEA,7U.S.C. §
6¢(b) (2002), and Regulation 33. 10(b) 17 C.F.R. §33 10(b) (2007), pursuant to'Section
2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) and Regulation 1.2, 17 CFR. §1.2
(2007). Under Section 2(a)(1)(B) of_the CEA, 7 US.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) and
Regulation 1.2, 17 C.F ;R; § 1.2 (2007), strict liability is imposed upon principals for the
actions of their agents acting within .the scope of their employment. |

71. - Heierle directly or indirectly controlled INH and did not act in good faith
or 'knovﬁngly induced, directly'or indirectly, the acts eonstituting its Violations of Section
4c(b) of the CEA 7U.8.C. § 6¢(b) (2002) and Regulatlon 33.10(b), 17 C F.R. §33. 10(b)

(2007) Helerle is therefore liable for these V1olat10ns of INH pursuant to Sectlon 13(b)

of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 13c(b) (2002).
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72.  Each false statement issued or caused to be issued during the relevant time
period, including but not lirnited to those specifically alleged herein, is alleged as a‘
‘separate and distinct violation of Section 4¢(b) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b) (2002), and
Regulation 33.10 (b), 17 C.F.R. §33.10(b) (2007). |
| | COUNT FIVE

VIOLATION OF SECTION 40(1) OF THE CEA
FRAUD AS A »COMMODITY POOL OPERATOR

73.  The allegations set forth in parégraphs 1 through 52 are re-alleged and
incorporated by. reference herein.

74. By making, or causing to be made, material misrepresentations, omissions
a.nd false returns and aceeunt 7statements te pool participanrs, Defendants directly or
v indireeﬂy employed or is employing a de\rice, scheme, or artifice to defraud clients or
participanfs or prospective clients or participants, orhas engaged or is engaged in
_ rransactions, praetices or a course of business which operated or operates as a fraud or
deceit upon clients or perticipants or prospective clients or participants by using the mails
or other means or instrumentalities of interstate c.omme.rce' in violation of Section
40(1)(A) and (B) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 60(1)(A) and (B) (2002).

75. , During the relevant time period, Heierle Wae acting as the agent of INH.
: Therefore INH is liable for Heierle’s violations of Section 40(1)(A) and (B) of the CEA
7 U. S C. § 60(1)(A) and (B) (2002) pursuant to Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA, 7TUS.C.
§ 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) and Regulatron 1 2 17 C FR.§1.2 (2007) Under Section 2(a)(1)(B)

of the CEA 7U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002), and Regulatlon 12,17 CFR. § 12 (2007),

strict liability is imposed upon principals for the actions of their agents acting within the
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scope of vth‘eir employment,

76.  Heierle directly or indirectly cbntrolled INH _and did not act in good faith
or knoWingly induced, directly or indirectly, the acts constituting.its Violations of Section
40(1)(A) and (B) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 60(1)(A) and (B) (2002). Heierle is therefore
liable for these violatibns of INH pursuant to Section 13(b) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 13¢(b)
(2002). | B

.77. | Each occasion upon which Defendants made or caused to be made
mivsr'epresentati'ons, omissioné or false statements. or reports to investofs is alleged‘ herein
asa séparate and distinct violation of Section 40(1)(A) énci (B)of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §
60(1)(A) and (B) (2002). | | |

COUNT SIX _
VIOLATION OF SECTION 4m(1) OF THE CEA:
FAILURE TO REGISTER AS A COMMODITY POOL OPERATOR
"78. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 fhrough 52 are re-alleged and
incorpprated by réferencé herein.
| 79. | Beginning in at least October 2001, INH and Heierle, acti’ng‘ on behalf of
INH, solicited investments for the purpose of ppoling the invested capital and trading it in
the commodity futures and options markets. By doing so, INH acted as a CPO and
‘Heierle acted as an AP of INH. |
| 80. - Béginning in at least O_ctober 2001, INH and Heierle used the mails or
instrumentalitics o»-f interstate‘ cofnmerbe in or in connection with INH’s business asa
CPO and AP while'failing fo rbebgister wfth thé Co’rriniissio_n as é CPO, in violation of

Section 4m(1) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 6m(1) (2002).



81‘. Heierle directly or indirectly controlled INH and did not actin good faitli
or knowingly induced, directiy or iridirectly, the acts constituting its violations of Section
4m(1) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 6m(lj (2002), pursuant to Section 17.3(b) of the CEA, 7
U.S.C. § 13¢(b) (2002). | |

_ COUNT SEVEN
VIOLATION OF SECTION 4k(2) OF THE CEA:
FAILURE TO REGISTER AS AN ASSOCIATED PERSON
| 82. The allégations set forth in patagraphs 1 throogh 52 are re-alleged and
incorporated by reference herein. |

83.  Insoliciting and accepting funds from indiviciuals for the purpose of
pooling the funds and investirig in commodity futures and options, Heierle was acting as
an AP of INH without bieing registered wit}i the Commission as required. Heierle’s
| fail_ure to register as an AP of INH Violates Section 4k(2) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 6k(2)'

(2002). | | | |
- 84.  During thé relevant time périod, Heiérle was acting as the agent of INH.
Thefei"dre, INH is lieible for Heierle’s violations of Section 4k(2) of the CEA, 7US.C. § i
6k(2) (2002), pursuant to Soction 2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2002) |
~ and Regulation 1.2, 1.7 CFR § i.2-(2007_). Under Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the CEA, 7 -v
_ U..S.C;'§ 2(a)(1-)(B) (2002), and Regulation 1.2, 17 C.F R. § 1.2 (2007), strict liability is
imposed upon principals for tho actions of their agents écting within the scope of their

| employment_;
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COUNT EIGHT |
VIOLATION OF REGULATION 4.20(a)(1) AND (b):
FAILURE BY A CPO TO TREAT THE COMMODITY POOL
AS A SEPARATE ENTITY AND ACCEPTING POOL FUNDS
' OTHER THAN IN THE NAME OF THE POOL
85, The allegations Set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52 are re-allegéd and
incorporated by reference herein. |
- 86. INH, through its officer, employees,_ or agents, including Heiérle, directed
~ pool participants to debosit pool funds into accounts held bylhim or INH. By doing SO,
INH failed to operate the pool as a legal entity separate from INH as the pool operator, in
violation of Regulation 4.20(g)(1), 17 C.F.R. § 4.20(a)(1) (2007). | |
87. | INH, through ifs ofﬁCef, employees, or agents, iﬁcluding Héierle, accepted.
pool funds into accounts in the riéme of himself, INH and FTA and not in the name of the
“INH pool.” By doing so, INH violated Regulation 4.20(b), 17 CFR § 4.20(b) (2007).
88.  Heierle directly or indirectly controlled INH énd did not act in good faith
or knowingly induced, directly or indirectly, fhe acts cénstimting its violations of '
o Regulations 4.20(&1)(1) and (b), 17 C.F.R. § 4.20(a)(1) and (b) (2007).‘ Heierle is t_herefor_e
liable for these 'v‘i.ola’.tions of INH pursuaht to Section 13(b) of the CEA, 7 'U.S.C. § 13c(b)
| (2002). |
| 89.  Each o'ccasion upon which’Defenda.nts failed to operate the INH pools as |
entities 'separaté from tHemSelves or accepted funds other than iﬁ the name of the pools in
is alleged herein as a separate and di‘stinct violation of Rggu_lations 4.20(a)( I)and (b), 17 -

' CFR § 4.20(a)(1) and (b) (2007).
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COUNT NINE
VIOLATION OF REGULATION 4.21: :

FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE IN A
COMMODITY POOL DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND FAILURE TO RECEIVE
SIGNED ACKNOWLEDGMENTS FROM POOL PARTICIPANTS

90. The allegationsv set _forth in paragraphs | 1 through 52 are re-alleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

91. | Regulation 4.21,17 C.F.R. § 4.21 (2007), requires that, prior to soliciting,
accepting or receiving funtls, a CPO must furnish the pool participant with a written
- Disclosure Document containing specific language set forth by Regulatrons 1nclud1ng

. Regulatrons 4.24 and 4.25, 17 C.F.R. §§ 4.24 and 4 25 (2007) In addition, prior to

accepting or receiving funds, a CPO is required to receive from pool participants an
acknewledgment signed and ‘dated by the participants that they received the Disclosure
- Document. | |

92.  INH, through its ofﬁcer, employees, or agents, including Heie'rle, failed to
furnish pool participants with a written Disclosure Document that previded the -
infornlatien required by Regulations, including Regulations 4.24 and 4.25, 17 C.F.R. §§
4.24 and 4.25 (2007), anct failed to receive'signed and dateti acknowledgments from the
pool partlclpants statmg that they. recelved a Dlsclosure Document. By doing so, Helerle,
actlng on behalf of hlmself and INH violated Regulatlon 421,17 CF.R. § 4.21 (2007).

: 93. Helerle directly or indirectly controlled INH and did not act in good faith

or know1ngly induced, dlrectly or indirectly, the acts constltutlng its v1olat10ns of

Regulatlons 421,17 C. F R § 4 21 (2007) Helerle is therefore liable for these Vlolatlons

of INH pursuant to Section 13(b) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C..§ 13¢c(b) (2002).
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1z ~Each occasion upon which Defendants failed to provide the information
~ required to be in a commodity pool disclosure document or failed to receive signed
acknowledgements from pool participants is alleged herein as a separate and distinct
violation of Regulation 4.21? 17CF.R. § 421 (2007).
© COUNTTEN
VIOLATION OF REGULATION 4.22:
FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED
TO BE IN A MONTHLY ACCOUNT STATEMENT

95. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 threugh 52 are re-alleged and
.incorporated by reference herein. |
| 96. Regulation 4.22, 17 C.F.R. § 4.22 (2007), requires that a CPO must
~ furnish pool participants,n/ith monthly Account Statements containing specific
information, including but net limited to the total amount of fees and commissions during |
'_the reporting period.

97.  INH, through its officer, employees,‘ or agents, including Heierle, failed to
furnish poel participants with a monthly Account Statement that provided the information
required by Regulatlon 4 22,17 CF. R § 4.22 (2007), and in doing so, violated |
Regulatlon 4 22,17 CF.R. § 422 (2007).

98.  Heierle directly or indirectly controlled INH and did not act in good faith |
or knowingly induced, directly or 1nd1rectly, the acts constltutmg its violations of
Regulatlons 422,17 C.F.R. § 4.22 (2007). Heierle is therefore liable for these v1olat10ns

of INH pursuant to Sectlon 13(b) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 13¢(b) (2002)

99.  Each occasion upon which Defendants failed to provide the information
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required to bé ina monthly Account Statement is alleged herein as a separate and distinct
violation of Regulation 4.22, 17 C.F.R. § 4.22-(2007).

| COUNT ELEVEN |
DISGORGEMENT OF FUNDS FROM THE RELIEF DEFENDANT

100. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52 are re-alleged and
- incorporéted by reference herein.

101. Defendants have engaged in a fraudulent investnient scheme that
defrauded INH pool participants.

- 102. " FTA has received funds that were obtained as a result of the Defendants’

fraﬁdulent conduct. | |

103. | FTA has no legitimate entitlement to or interest in the funds received from
the Defendants > fraudulent conduct. |

104. FTA shoﬁld be réquired tb disgorge the funds it received from fhe
Def_endantsf fraudulent conduct, or the value of those funds that FTA may have
subsequently transferred to th.ird parties.

105. By reason of the foregoing, FTA holds funds in constructive trust for the
benefit of INH pool participants who weré victimized by Defendants’ fraudulent scheme..

VL
RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully réquests that this Court, aS
author_izéd by Section 6¢ of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2002), and pursuant to its own
equitable powers, entér: |

(@ a statutory réstraiﬁing order enjoining Defendants and the Relief
Defendant and all persons insofar as they are acting in the capacity of their
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- agents, servants, successors, assigns, and attorneys, and all persons insofar
as they are acting in active concert or participation with them who receive
actual notice of such order by personal service or otherwise, from directly
or indirectly: '

1.  Destroying, mutilating, concealing, altering, or
disposing of any books and records, documents,
correspondence, brochures, manuals, electronically stored
data, tape records or other property of Defendants and the
Relief Defendant, wherever located, including all such
records concerning Defendants’ and the Relief Defendant’s
business operations;

2. Refusing to permit authorized representatives of the
Commission to inspect, when and as requested, any books
and records, documents, correspondence, brochures,
manuals, electronically stored data, tape records or other
property of Defendants and the Relief Defendant, wherever
located, including all such records concerning Defendants’
and the Relief Defendant’s business operations; and

3. Withdrawing, transferring, removing, dissipating,
concealing or disposing of, in any manner, any funds,

-assets, or other property, wherever situated, including but
not limited to, all funds, personal property, money or
securities held in safes, safety deposit boxes and all funds
on deposit in any financial institution, bank or savings and
loan account held by, under the control of, or in the name of
Defendants and the Relief Defendant;

(b)  orders of preliminary and permanent injunction prohibiting
Defendants from engaging in conduct violative of Sections 4b(a)(2)(i)-
(iii), 4c(b), 4k(2), 4m(1) and 4o(1) of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(i)-
(iii), 6¢(b), 6k(2), 6m(1) and 60(1) (2002), and Regulations 4.20(a)(1) and
(b), 4.21 and 33.10, 17 C.F.R. §§ 4.20(a)(1) and (b), 4.21, 4.22 and 33.10
(2007), and from engaging in any activity related to trading in any
commodity, as that term is defined in Section 1a(4) of the Act;

(c) an order directing Defendants and the Relief Defendant to
disgorge, pursuant to such procedure as the Court may order, all benefits -
teceived from the acts or practices which constitute violations of the CEA
or Regulations, and interest thereon from the date of such violations;

(d) - an order directing Defendants to make full fesfitution, pursuant to
such procedure as the Court may order, to every investor whose funds
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were received by them as a result of acts and practices which constituted
violations of the CEA or Regulatlons and interest thereon from the date of
such violations;

(e) an order directing Defendants to pay civil monetary penalties in the
amount of not more than the higher of $120,000 for each violation _
committed prior to October 24, 2004, and $130,000 for each violation

. committed thereafter, or triple his monetary gain for each Vlolatlon of the

Dated;

CEA or Regulations; and

® such orders and ﬁlrther remedial ancillary relief as the Court may
deem appropriate.

7/' /([ o7 Respectfully submitted,

U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES
TRADING COMMISSION

By/
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